M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 06, 2001
10: 12 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 10, SIDE A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approxinmately
10:12 a.m

PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d O son

Al so Attending: LARRY DIETRICK, Director, Dvision of Spill
Prevention and Response, Departnent of Environnmental Conservation;
BRIAN ROGERS, Information Insights; GEORGE CAPACCI, Ceneral
Manager, Al aska Marine Hi ghway, Departnment of Transportation and
Public Facilities; SUE SCHRADER, Al aska Conservation Voters; ERI C
BRI TTEN, CSX Lines, Limted Liability Conpany (LLC)

Attendi ng via Tel econference: From Anchor age: M CHELE BROWN,
Comm ssioner, Departnment of Environnental Conservation; BRECK
TOSTEVIN, Assistant Attorney General, Environnmental Section,
Depart ment of Law

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 16- A L DI SCH PREVENTI ON:  NONTANK VESSELS/ RR

The Committee heard from the Departnent of Environnental
Conservation, the Departnent of Transportation and Public
Facilities, the Departnment of Law, Al aska Conservation Voters and
menbers of the Task Force. The bill was held in Commttee.

SFC- 01 (1) 02/ 06/ 01



#sbl6

SENATE BILL NO. 16

"An Act regarding oil discharge prevention and cl eanup involving
sel f-propelled nontank vessels exceeding 400 gross registered
tonnage and railroad tank cars and related facilities and
operations and requiring preparation and inplenentation of oil
di scharge contingency plans for those nontank vessels and railroad
tank cars; anmending the definition of 'response action' that
relates to releases or threatened releases of oil and thereby
amending the duties and liabilities of response action contractors;
and aut hori zi ng conpliance verification for nontank vessels and for
trains and related facilities and operations; and providing for an
effective date.”

COW SSI ONER M CHELE BROWN, Depart ment of Envi r onnent al
Conservation, testified via teleconference from Anchorage,
i ndicating that she was the Chair of the Task Force on Mtorized
Q| Transport until the passage of SB 273 and served with Senator
Drue Pearce and Representative Pete Kott on the steering commttee.
She pointed out that the Task Force included a twenty-three nenber
cross-section of the maritine industry, the Al aska Railroad and
[indisc.]. She explained that the goal of SB 16 was sinple; to
protect Al aska s renewable resources and to keep Alaska's waters
the cl eanest and nost pristine in the world by including the |arge
seagoi ng mari ne nontank vessels and the Al aska Railroad in Al aska
Safety Net for Ol Spill Prevention and Response.

Comm ssi oner Brown noted that |ast year the |egislature passed SB
273 and SCR 1, which asked the Task Force to work out the details
on how to inplenment the standards. She indicated that the Task
Force conpleted the work directed by the | egislature and achi eved
unani nous agreenent to acconplish that goal. She further stated
that SB 273 established a requirenent for proof of financia

responsibility for the nontank vessels and the railroad and was
made effective last year. She added that SB 273 also set out a
pl anni ng standard for the oil spill response contingency plan (c-
plan), but did not nmake that a formal requirenent, instead the
| egi sl ature, through SB 273 and SCR 1, conm ssioned a Task Force to
determ ne how to i nplenent those response planning standards and to
provi de opportunities to streamine them

Comm ssioner Brown further explained that the response planning
standard set by the legislature in SB 273 was the contai nnent and
control of fifteen percent of the maxinum oil capacity of the
nontank vessel or train within 48 hours and cleanup of the
di scharge within the shortage possible tinme in order to mnimze

SFC- 01 (2) 02/ 06/ 01



the damage to the environnent. Nont ank vessels were defined as
sel f-propell ed vessels over 400 gross tons not including tank

vessels, oil barges or public vessels. She said that SCR 1
specified 23 nenbers to the Task Force to ensure a diversity of
viewpoints and adequate representation of all groups to be

regul at ed. She indicated that the Task Force held 11 fornal
meetings over a five-nonth period and the nenbers worked through a
lot of legal and technical issues on oil spill prevention,
contingency plans and response pl anni ng standards. She expl ai ned
that there were work groups setup to address specific concerns.
She asserted that the recomendati ons provided by the Task Force
are practical and realistic and neet the requirenents inplenented
by last years legislature including inplenentation neasures that
use a narket-based econony approach to keep costs down. The
recommendati ons are based on Alaska's existing oil spill response
infrastructure and provide maxinmum flexibility for neeting the
requirenents. She said that private sector initiatives have
al ready been fostered that significantly increases the resources
that will be brought to bear on a spill. She pointed out that
alliances have been forned between ship agents, stevedoring
conpani es and spill response cooperatives and a new nmari ne exchange
coving the entire State of Alaska is being created. The nenbers of
the Task Force were extrenely intent and assiml ated a trenendous
anount of information. She noted that all of the neetings were
very wel | attended.

Comm ssioner Brown continued, saying that the Task force
unani nously agreed to support 31 separate recommendati ons. She
added that it is the Task Force’s recommendation to adopt the bill
wi t hout amendnent since the |egal nuances and details have been
reviewed and an enornous anount of effort has gone into fornulating
this legislation. She asserted that SB 16 is straight forward in
its’ approach and basically makes SB 273 effective, while including
enabl i ng | anguage for regul ation detailing out the inplenentation.
The regul ation has effectively been negotiated through the Task
Force proceedings and will be drafted consistent with the 31
recommendations in the report. She summarized that the Task Force
has successfully conpleted the work requested by the |egislature
and has pr oduced unani nous agr eenent of t he reported
reconmendations for rule making to allow themto participate in a
oil spill safety net wthout facing a nunber of pre-spil
requi renents. She expressed her gratitude for the |eadership of
Senat or Pearce and Representative Kott on the Task Force.

BRI AN ROGERS, Principle of Information Insights and Task Force
facilitator, stated that the Task Force went through a public
process on how to inplement the legislation adopted by the
| egi slature last year. The group reached unani nobus agreenent on

SFC- 01 (3) 02/ 06/ 01



t he recommendati ons. He noted that nost of the recommendations
were not statutory in nature, but rather a guidance for the
departnments setting limts on the regulatory process. He indicated
that SB 16 contained the mninmum changes in statute that were
necessary to activate the process; basically three things: first,
to activate the contingency planning process; second, to limt
liability for certain participants in the process; third, to enable
t he adoption of the regulation.

M. Rogers pointed out that the recommendations contained in the
report cover four basic areas: the response planning standard, the
contingency plan process, the prevention and the Al aska railroad.
The Task Force, in unaninously adopting this report, recomended
this legislation with the attached letter of intent. He explained
that the letter of intent is designed to insure that the regul atory
process, that would follow the adoption of this |egislation,
follows the intent of the Task Force. The approach chosen by the
Task Force is a market-based approach providing several alternative
nmeans for conpliance in order to neet the needs of the different
sectors of the regulated industry. Al so, to provide for fazed
i npl enentation, allowing time for response and tine for investnent
by the regulated comunity in the expenses necessary to neet the
terms of the bill. He believes the process shows that negotiated
rule making can work; involving industry in witing the rules
together with the regulators can be a successful process.

M. Rogers pointed out that the group started with four goals
(listed on page 8 of the report): that the recommendati ons be
realistic, effective, economcally feasible and flexible.

M. Rogers indicated that the recommendations in the report, first
on the response planning standard, calls for the vessels to have a
boom three times their length and the ability to deploy it.
Second, cleanup in the shortage tinme possible, which neans there
needs to be a skimmer in the area or the ability to get a ski mrer
appropriate to the type of oil to the area within 24 hours. Third,
the standard is fifteen percent of vessel capacity and in the
recommendati ons they are reducing the standard for a vessel that is
never carrying the full capacity.

M. Rogers explained that the second area is the contingency plan

whi ch has three basic requirenents. First, that the vessel has
shown its financial responsibility and has a qualified individual
to make the decisions binding the conpany. Second, that they have
a response action plan consisting of their procedures for

notification of a spill and that they have a contract with a
primary response action contractor and a contract wth an incident
managenent teamto manage a spill shoul d one happen. Third, that

SFC- 01 (4) 02/ 06/ 01



they neet the international maritinme requirenment. He noted that
alternatives to the contract with cooperatives or prinmary response
action contractors the vessels provide their own equivalent
resources or can use part of their own resources and part contract
resources, providing owners sone flexibility on how they neet the
requi renents for contingency planning.

M. Rogers said that in addition the recommendati ons provide for a
generic plan to be devel oped by the vessel agents for those spot
charters that enter Al aska waters on short notice who are not going
to be in a position to develop a whole plan. The generic planis
faxed to the owner and signed and faxed back. He further expl ai ned
that they have provided for fleet plans that m ght cover a group of
vessel s; an owner of a group of vessels or a group of vessel owners
can ban together to form their own alternative conpliance. He
pointed out that recommendations set tight tinmeframes for
Depart nent of Envi r onnent al Conservati on review of t he
applications. He explained that the initial applications would be
deened acceptable and then reviewed over a cycle, rather than
vessel s having to wait for Department of Environmental Conservation
to approve themin the first place. The recommendati ons provide
for oil spill drills and for review of conpliance by the Depart nent
of Environnmental Conservation. He noted that the prevention
nmeasures are all voluntary under international maritine |aw, but
there is a process set out wwth a potential reward for vessels that
undertake nethods to prevent oil spills. He added that for the
Al aska railroad the group endorsed the railroad’ s risk analysis
process and basically said that the railroad should go through the
sane c-plan process.

M. Rogers briefly discussed the sectional analysis of the bill

e Sections 1 - 3 |limts civil liability of oil response action
contractors.

e Section 4 anends the definition of “response action” to

clarify the limtations on civil Iliability for incident
managenment team services and response plan facilitator
servi ces.

e Section 5 relates to the proof of financial responsibility and
basi cally makes the | anguage for nontank vessels identical to
that for tank vessels.

» Section 6 extends the existing i nnocent passage exenptions to
all of the requirenments for nontank vessel c-plans.

e Section 7 sets up the c-plan process. Assum ng passage of
| egislation this year there will be roughly a year to adopt
regul ations and then six nonths follow ng the adoption of
regul ati ons woul d be when the c-plan would be due. He noted

SFC- 01 (5) 02/ 06/ 01



that the equi pnrent would not be due for another year and a
half to allow for fazing of capital expenditures.

- (f) requires approved c-pl ans

- (g) sets forth the contents of those plans

- (h) lays out the alternatives to having contracts

- (i) extends the c-plan provisions of existing law to the
nont ank vessel s

- (J) & (k) relate to the railroad tank cars that transport
oi

- (lI) directs the Departnent of Environmental Conservation to
adopt the regulations to inplenent the |egislation

e Section 8 is the conpliance section that allows the Departnent
of Environnental Conservation to verify conpliance.

e Section 9 is the certification of the effective date of the
statute and the inplenenting regul ation.

e Section 10 provides the imedi ate effective date of the bill.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if the private industry is able to respond
to the new need created by the |egislation.

M. Rogers said yes, in part. He explained that there are three
existing oil spill cooperatives. He indicated that they have a
fazed schedule of noving into areas of Wstern Al aska and
establishing a hub with equipnment. The process designed by the
Task Force was designed to dovetail wth that system so by the
time this is effective there woul d be equi pnent ready to respond in
Western Al aska where they do not currently have equipnent. He
added that the general feeling is that there are sufficient
contractors.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered if there was a federal requirenent hanging
over their head and if there have been a nunber of spills.

M. Rogers responded that there have been a nunber of spills. He
i ndi cated that the Departnent of Environnental Conservation could
speak to that in ternms of nunbers. He noted that there do exi st
federal requirenents that effect oil spill prevention and response
and this would be an enhancenent to that within state waters.

Senat or Austerman requested clarification on whether the agencies
woul d be setting up their own response.

M. Rogers clarified that vessels or groups of vessels can set up
their own response.

Senat or Hof f man wondered, in the |egislation, where it speaks to
when the c-plans and contracts are required.

SFC- 01 (6) 02/ 06/ 01



M. Rogers referred to Section 7(j), page 5, line 14, for railroad
and Section 7(f), page 4, line 7, for marine vessels. He explained
that it is the time at which the c-plan has to have been filed with
t he Departnent of Environnental Conservation in order for a vesse
to operate, which is 180 days after the adoption of the
regul ati ons.

Senator Hoffman wondered if they have an indication of the
ti meframe?

M. Rogers responded that they have anticipated the regulatory
process woul d take approximately 12 nonths followi ng the signing of
the legislation; it has to go through whol e public process.

Senat or Hof f nan wondered if it would be sone tine in 2003.

M . Rogers responded that they anticipate the c-plans would be due
i n January 2003.

Senat or Hof f man asked when the contracts woul d have to be signed?

M. Rogers stated that the contracts would have to be in place at
that tine. In order to have a valid c-plan they either need to
have a contract with a response action contractor in place or they
have to certify that they have their own resources to neet the
requi renent.

Co-Chair Kelly wondered what happens if the plans are not in place
at that tine.

M. Rogers responded that the nontank vessel would not be able to
be operated in state.

Co-Chair Kelly asked what the fines were relating to that.
M. Rogers deferred the question to the Attorney General’s office.
Senator G een requested a glossary of all the terns.

M . Rogers understood Senator Green’s concern and would add it for
the Conmmttee.

BRECK TOSTEVI N, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Environnental Section

Department of law, said that he did not have any specific
testinmony, but would address any questions. He indicated that
under statute providing for civil assessnent the fine ranges from
$500 to $100,000 per day and $5,000 for each day violation

SFC- 01 (7) 02/ 06/ 01



conti nues.

Co-Chair Kelly added that it seens they would be pretty notivated
to conply.

Senat or Hof fman wondered what types of rates are going to be
required with such steep fines.

M. Tostevin indicated that in current law and in |last years
| egi slation, SB 273, there was proof of financial responsibility
required.

Senat or Hof f man wondered if there was going to be required bondi ng.
He pointed out that even with a sinple filling station there is
substantial bonding required. He noted that it seened this would
put an additional burden particularly on the small carriers.

Co-Chair Donley requested clarification on whether there was
i nsurance avail able to cover people for fines.

M. Tostevin responded that sone insurance woul d cover people for
t hese fines. He clarified that vessels need to have proof of
financial responsibility already in | aw.

M. Rogers indicated that each vessel has to file proof of
financial responsibility, basically, a letter of credit stating

that they could cover the cost of the spill. He expl ai ned t hat
failing to file a response plan would be separate from insurance
that was available in case there was a spill. He noted that nost

vessel s woul d i nsure agai nst those kinds of catastrophes. He did
not believe that M. Tostevin was suggesting that insurance woul d
be available for failing to neet admnistrative requirenents. He
further clarified that the admnistrative penalty of $500 to
$100, 000 per day would be for failing to operate under the | aw not
for a spill, which has a different set of cal cul ati ons.

Senator Ward referred to senator Hof fman’s question about insurance
and requested clarification that in existing law it requires a
letter of credit that indicates that the entity is financially able
to clean up a spill

M . Rogers responded correct.

Senator Ward renmarked that there is already sonme cost to create
t hat docunent .

M. Rogers said that the existing letters of credit would inpose
costs on the regulated industry. He explained that this

SFC- 01 (8) 02/ 06/ 01



| egi sl ati on woul d cover the contingency and prevention side, which

woul d lower the cost of the spill. He further explained that if
the regulated industry were ready for a spill it would reduce the
overall costs of dealing with a spill and | ower costs of insurance

against spills because they would be less likely to happen if
peopl e are prepared for them Therefore, while it does inpose sone
costs in terns of the contracts being in place over tinme the costs
of preparation should save noney conpared to the cost of a spill

LARRY DI ETRICK, Director, Division of Spill Prevention and
Response, Departnent of Environnental Conservation. He explained
that the fiscal note projection was taken out to FYO7. He pointed
out that they tried to | ook at the resources that woul d be required
to inplement the plan in the long run, recognizing that the task
force would need a startup wi ndow of a couple years. Those couple
years, he stated, would allow for the accomopdation of the
promul gation of the rule, which they estimted would be about a
twel ve-nonth process and the conpletion of that process would
trigger subm ssion of the plans, which would be required 180 days
after the effective date of the regulations. He added that there
is another w ndow to acconmodate the capitalization of the
equi pnent itenms to bring the whole thing to conpletion. He
i ndi cated that FYO3 and FY04 are the peak years when they woul d be
receiving the plans and registering the primary response action
contractors for the incident managenent teans.

M. Dietrick further noted that the systemis heavily dependent on
the private sector resources to assenble the plans and facilitate
themw th the various shippers and return themto the departnent.
He pointed out that there is a training conponent that the task
force wants themto performthat would hel p educate the regul ated
comunity, there is the prevention credit program and they were
also asked to post the contingency plan on a website. He
reiterated that the peak years for acconplishing that woul d be FYO3
and FYO4. He explained that the FYO2 anount of $78,000 was for the
one position to get started and put the regul ati on packet together.
He noted that they also increased that with one additional full-
time person for FYO3 and FYO4 and backed that up with two tenporary
positions that may be needed to deal with that peak. He said that
they converted the positions to tenporary status so they woul d not
linger on after they were finished with the review and approva
process, which neans they go away in FY05, FY06 and FYO7. He
poi nted out that two positions or $141,000 is what they believe to
be the mninmum cost necessary to process approximtely 500
applications accounting for approximately 900 vessels. He
specified that the estinmate on the vessels was conmng from the
financial responsibility requirement that was inposed in SB 273
| ast year and becane effective on Septenber 1. He informed the

SFC- 01 (9) 02/ 06/ 01



Comm ttee that the bulk of the plans would be done on the private
sector side in terms of the arrangenments for the qualified
i ndi viduals, the incident conmander; in essence the response team
and the response resources. He reported that they estinmating that

very few conpanies wll want to develop their own. The
efficiencies using market forces, he thinks, will tend to drive
participation and the sharing of resources the way it was done to
dat e. He noted that the three cooperatives in the state,
currently, have evolved over the past ten years neeting the state’'s
new oil spill requirements that were inposed in 1990 based on the
need to neet the requirenents. He indicated that the three

cooperatives now provide that capability.

Co-Chair Kelly requested clarification on what happens to the
person brought on to pronulgate the regulations after the
regul ati on process i s done.

M. Dietrick responded that the person woul d subsequently becone
one of the reviewers of the plan.

Senat or Hof f man wondered why they did not use a conbi nation of user
fees, instead of wholly relying upon the oil spill response fund.

M. Dietrick explained that the task force did “rassle” with the
funding issue. He referred to Recommendation 31 and i ndi cated that
it was one of the nmany ways the task force tried to hold the cost
down for everybody; they nmade a recommendation that the industry

not be charged a user fee. He noted that the recomrendation
actual ly suggested that the response fund and/or general fund be
used. In view of the concerns over the general fund they

interpreted that to nean that the first choice would probably be
the response fund, so they directed that account as the funding
sour ce.

Senat or Hof f man wondered what the difference was between user fee
and the one tine initiation fee.

M. Dietrick deferred the question to the representative fromthe
Departnent of Transportation and Public Facilities.

GEORGE CAPPACCI, Ceneral WManager, Al aska Marine H ghway System
Departnment of Transportation and Public Facilities, indicated that
the funding source for all the contingency planning is the spil
response fund for the Al aska Marine Hi ghway. He noted that there
is a fee to sign up with contracting agencies to have those
resources and join the cooperative.

Senator Ward wondered if there was any discussion to have the

SFC-01 (10) 02/ 06/ 01



industry contract out to private contractors wthout using any
stat e enpl oyees.

M. Cappacci indicated that there was a heavy alliance to use the
current marine infrastructure that has been created in the state
for response as the primary response vehicle. He explained that
the discussion with the Task Force was to not charge user fees for
the regul ated community for participating.

Senat or Ward wondered why.

M. Cappacci indicated that one of the goals of the Task Force was
the affordability of the whol e package for the regul ated industry;
therefore, the piece about charging a user fee to pay for the cost
to inplenment the program was di scussed and the recommendati on of
the Task Force was not charging a user fee to keep the cost down.

Senat or Ward wondered if there was anal ysis on that.

M . Cappacci responded that the docunentati on was included in the
Task Force report and the transcript of the proceeding was al so
avai |l abl e.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for the testinony specifically on the bil
itself.

SUE SCHRADER, Al aska Conservation Voters, indicated that they are
pl eased with the Task Force and support the requirenents of SB 16.
She urged the Conmttee to support the bill

ERIC BRI TTEN, Manager of planning and devel opnment, CSX Lines
i ndi cated that he was a nenber of the Task Force created by SB 273
and SCR 1.

SFC-01 # 10, SIDE B 10:59 a. m

M. Britten continued that it was a phenonenal process. He
understood that there is a degree of concern about a |ack of
opposition to the bill and the regul ations. He indicated that
whet her that is true or not, he thinks, the way all parties cane to
the table and the interactions were pretty phenonenal. He pointed
out that the report before themis indicative of where they arrived
and it was by consensus. He noted that it took a |ot of hard work
and | ate evenings to work through it; the menbers of the Task Force
were very dedicated. He said that he personally received severa
e-mails of support. The process is working here and the
regul ati ons that have been proposed are focused on cost. He asked
for the Conmttee’ s support for SB 16.

SFC-01 (11) 02/ 06/ 01



#
ADJ OURNED

Co-Chair Kelly adjourned the neeting at 11:00 a. m

SFC-01 (12) 02/ 06/ 01



